

Da Vinci Schools

Minutes

Da Vinci Schools Regular Board Meeting

Date and Time

Wednesday March 23, 2022 at 6:00 PM

Da Vinci Schools ("DV") welcomes your participation at its Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of the Board of Directors ("Board") is to conduct the affairs of DV in public. Your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our schools. To assist you in speaking/participating in our meetings, the following guidelines are provided:

- 1. Teleconferencing will be conducted through Zoom. Join Zoom meeting at https://zoom.us/j/93915100147, Meeting ID: 939 1510 0147, or dial (669) 900-6833
- 2. Agendas are available to all audience members on the Da Vinci Schools website at www.davincischools.org.
- 3. Audience members who wish may speak on any agenda items or under the general category of "Public Comments," which is time set aside for members of the audience to raise issues not specifically on the agenda. However, due to public meeting laws, the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are limited to three (3) minutes each and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes. Non-English speakers who use a translator shall have six (6) minutes in which to address the Board.
- 4. The Board may give direction to staff to respond to your concern or you may be offered the option of returning with a citizen-requested item.
- 5. The chair will recognize such individuals who wish to speak on a specific agenda item at the appropriate time. When addressing the Board, speakers are requested to adhere to the time limits set forth, and to not repeat remarks made by those who preceded them.
- 6. Any public records relating to an agenda item for an open session of the Board which are distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the Board members shall be available for public inspection at 201 N. Douglas Street, El Segundo, CA 90245, during Business Office operating hours. Please contact the CEO's office at 310-725-5800.

The agenda and documents in the agenda packet will be made available, if requested, in appropriate alternative formats to any person with a disability as required by the ADA, 42 USC section 12132, and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. To request a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, you must contact the CEO's office at 310-725-5800 at least 48 hours before a regular meeting, and at least 12 hours before a special meeting. (Government Code § 54954.2(a)(1).)

Trustees Present

B. Meath (remote), D. Boston (remote), D. Brann (remote), J. Morgan (remote), J. Webber (remote), R. Ochoa (remote), R. Santiago (remote)

Trustees Absent

None

Guests Present

A. Wohlwerth (remote), B. Silvers (remote), Crissel Rodriguez, E. D'Souza (remote), G. Long (remote), J. Hawn (remote), M. Amato (remote), M. Denniston (remote), M. Wunder (remote), Maryam Diaab, Neil Goldman, R. Stoll (remote), S. Wallis (remote), Samuel Renteria, V. Bravo (remote)

I. Opening Items

A. Call the Meeting to Order

J. Morgan called a meeting of the board of trustees of Da Vinci Schools to order on Wednesday Mar 23, 2022 at 6:02 PM.

B. Record Attendance and Guests

C. Approval of Agenda

- R. Santiago made a motion to approve.
- B. Meath seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- R. Santiago Aye
- J. Morgan Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- B. Meath Aye

D. Public Comments

Ralph Byrne made a comment inquiring about the repair of the pool. Ms. Morgan directed the staff to respond to Mr. Byrne.

LaShawnda Keys made a comment about the treatment of African American students.

Dr. Nicole Johnson, parent, also made a comment about the treatment of African American students.

Brooklyn Bennett's mother also made a comment about the treatment of African American students.

Mr. Griffin made a comment informing the audience about the Uniform Complaint process.

II. Information

A. From the Board

Mr. Boston commented that he had learned about the two racial incidents at the high school and Connect K-8, saying that this behavior is at the very least completely inappropriate, and totally not in keeping with Da Vinci values. He asked the staff take this very seriously and move forward with appropriate action. He suggested discussion with not only the students but also with the families; as children do not learn this type of behavior or change this type of behavior on their own. Families need to be involved in terms of guiding the students and perhaps changing their own behavior, if they want to be part of the Da Vinci community. Mr. Boston asked the staff to redouble its efforts to provide the students with a better understanding of how to behave in keeping with Da Vinci values of community, diversity, and inclusion. These are values which must be maintained daily across our schools.

Mr. Santiago commented that the staff wanted to meet with the parents right away, but since he was not available, he is part of the delay in the scheduling of the meeting. He really wanted to be present at the meeting.

Mr. Ochoa agreed with Mr. Boston and Mr. Santiago on the unacceptable behavior and the seriousness of the issue.

Dr. Webber also concurred, saying that the behavior doesn't reflect Da Vinci values, doesn't normally start with the children, and is not what we want for any of our children. She thanked the parents for coming forward.

Mr. Meath agreed with all comments made.

Dr. Brann thanked the parents for sharing their comments. He also reminded the board of the CARnival event happening on Saturday, March 26, and congratulated Science principal Steve Wallis on achieving his doctorate.

B. Working Group Update

Ms. Morgan shared that the working groups have been formed with two Da Vinci and Wiseburn board members in each group.

Dr. Wunder shared that staff is happy to help coordinate meetings should the board need, but if the trustees would like to reach out to the Wiseburn counterparts, they may do so. He leaves it up to the board for their direction.

Mr. Meath commented that he had not had the chance to coordinate with his corepresentatives as to whether or not to use staff assistance in scheduling. Mr. Santiago shared that he believed Dr. Silvers indicated a follow-up email to

schedule meetings was forthcoming, but Mr. Santiago feels that the Da Vinci trustees can drive the process if need be.

C. From the CEO/Superintendent

Dr. Wunder thanked the parents for stepping up and into the issues surrounding respect for all students regardless of race, and said that he shares the concerns and feels this is an opportunity to do better and be stronger as a result.

Dr. Hawn introduced Ms. Crissel Rodriguez, Da Vinci's new Director of Real World Learning, saying that the rigorous interview process highlighted Ms. Rodriguez' depth of knowledge and experience in career-connected learning.

Ms. Rodriguez thanked Dr. Hawn, and shared that the career pathways are great for exposing students to different careers. Talking to students, she finds many of them would like to explore other industries. Ms. Rodriguez is working to set up numerous summer internships across a wide range of industries, including law and technology, and a number of summer fellowships with UCLA and USC. She is also developing career competencies and certifications to guide the career pathway work.

She is also looking to utilize a software system called Imblaze to capture data and demographics related to mentorships and career-connected learning activities.

D. Student Board Member Update

Ms. Carisma De Anda introduced the student board member report.

Ms. Tania Newman shared the Da Vinci Design update, speaking of Black History Month Spirit Week, Community Dialogue, Senior Grad Night, and college acceptances. Ms. Newman noted that the racial incident that occurred at the Community Dialogue was proof of the crucial need for student representation and cultural clubs like the Black Student Union to exist to advocate against persistent historical prejudices.

Ms. Emma Enriquez gave the Science update, speaking of the Semi Formal dance, thanking the DVC team that organized the event; the Cal Poly SLO trip; the FRC Robotics Orange County Regional competition, Student-Led Conferences, the Black Student Union and National Society of Black Engineers-sponsored Community Dialogue, and CARnival.

Mr. Zirak Engineer gave the Connect K-8 update, speaking of the Sex Ed classes for 7th and 8th grades, Exhibition prep, Student-led Conferences, and yearbook photos at the Manhattan Beach pier.

Ms. Franki Johnson shared the Connect High School update, saying that Student-led Conferences are spaces for students to share their work with their parents. Black Student Union hosted a Battle of the Advisories and a Game Night. Connect High Schools students have completed 56 college courses so far.

Ms. Daniela Torres gave the Communications update, sharing that the Semi-Formal dance was well-attended, 11th grade students undertook CAASPP English testing, students are looking forward to the upcoming Exhibition, and have gone on a farm field trip.

Mr. Santiago thanked the student board members, and challenged them to mentor younger students to continue the student board member program.

E.

Financial Update

Mr. Michael Amato shared the FY 21-22 Second Interim Year-end Projections, giving State LCFF revenue figures, Federal revenue like the \$616K Electronic Connectivity Fund Grant for technology expenses which has been awarded, and COVID relief, CTEIG, and Strong Workforce grants. Other donations from Northrop Grumman, Boeing, Chevron, etc. were also reflected.

Mr. Amato also shared personnel, materials & supplies, and other operating expenses. Personnel expenses were reduced but partially offset by an increase in substitute hiring expenses.

Second Interim Year-End projections show a surplus of \$757K, which is a difference from the First Interim budget, which showed a deficit of \$334K. The changes were due to a reduced LCFF revenue, the ECF grant finally being awarded, funding increases for COVID testing and other state and Federal funding, reduced personnel expenses, and CTEFP Round 5 grant expenses.

Dr. Brann asked for verification of the end of the Second Interim being March 15th. Brief discussion with Mr. Miles Denniston ensued.

Mr. Amato went on to share the unrestricted reserves data, saying that some of the reserves are designated for deferred maintenance, economic uncertainty, construction projects (\$1.5M for the soccer field), and the CTE Studio project.

Future year projections, also required in the Second Interim Report, were summarized as a surplus of \$562K (2022-23). Conservative fiscal year 2023-24 projections reflect uncertainty in Federal funding, unanticipated expenses, and a lower COLA estimate.

Ms. Morgan inquired about the DVC FY 22-23 negative projection. Mr. Amato discussed the Special Education expenses lodged at Da Vinci Communications. DVC receives federal and state funds for special education, but because of the special education FUTURES program's high expenses, it impacts DVC's projection.

Mr. Amato closed by commenting that the board-approved letter of potential withdrawal from CharterSafe, the insurance company, is required for the bidding process. A change in company or cost would begin in 2022-23.

Dr. Wunder reminded the board that Dr. Hawn negotiated a 0% increase in health benefit costs from last year.

F. Operations Update

Mr. Vicente Bravo shared that he is acquiring estimates for the soccer field turf.

Mr. Bravo is also acquiring feedback from coaches, student athletes, and other districts on types of turf. Mr. Bravo's office is looking into the project's DSA approval status Soil testing is required for the soccer field; so far, no issues have been uncovered. Additional expenses would be bleachers, scoreboard, a running track, fencing, storage, and maintenance.

Connect High School's move to 550 Continental went smoothly. Mr. Bravo thanked Belkin for their donations of furniture. The Connect High School staff and students have been good neighbors to the other businesses in the building.

CARnival and FRC Southern Regionals are coming up. Four International teams from South Africa, Turkey, Colombia, and Chile will be some of the 44 teams competing. Unfortunately, no spectators will be allowed.

The last Tiny Home has been deployed at Da Vinci RISE High's Richstone site. It is the first solar-powered tiny home built by the Da Vinci students.

Office pods are being installed in the Sandbox.

Da Vinci's high school graduation ceremonies will be held on June 9, Connect K-8 will be on June 8, and Alder University's regional ceremony will be held at Da Vinci on June 5. All ceremonies will be outdoors.

Mr. Bravo spoke of the pool repairs being conducted by the City of El Segundo, who maintain and operate the pool. Da Vinci's athletes will be practicing at the Mira Costa pool.

Brief discussion on the timeline of the soccer field completion ensued.

III. Approval of Minutes

A. Approval of Minutes for the February 15, 2022 Special Joint Board Meeting

- B. Meath made a motion to approve.
- J. Webber seconded the motion.
- Mr. Boston abstained due to his absence from this meeting.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- R. Ochoa Aye
- D. Boston Abstain
- R. Santiago Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- J. Morgan Aye

B. Approval of Minutes of the February 23, 2022 Regular Da Vinci Schools Board Meeting

- B. Meath made a motion to approve the minutes from Da Vinci Schools Regular Board Meeting on 02-23-22.
- J. Webber seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- J. Morgan Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- J. Webber Aye

C. Approval of Minutes of the February 25, 2022 Special Da Vinci Schools Board Meeting

- B. Meath made a motion to approve the minutes from Da Vinci Schools Special Board Meeting on 02-25-22.
- J. Webber seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- R. Santiago Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- J. Morgan Aye
- J. Webber Aye

D. Approval of Minutes of the March 8, 2022 Special Da Vinci Schools Board Meeting

- B. Meath made a motion to approve the minutes from Da Vinci Schools Special Board Meeting on 03-08-22.
- J. Webber seconded the motion.
- Dr. Brann abstained due to his absence from this meeting.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- D. Brann Abstain
- J. Webber Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- J. Morgan Aye

IV. Consent Agenda

A. Accept Da Vinci Schools Payment Register - February 2022

- J. Webber made a motion to accept the Da Vinci Schools February 2022 Payment Register.
- J. Morgan seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- B. Meath Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- J. Morgan Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- R. Santiago Aye

B. Approve Da Vinci Schools Second Interim Reports

- J. Webber made a motion to approve the Da Vinci Schools Second Interim Reports.
- J. Morgan seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

J. Morgan Aye

Roll Call

- D. Brann Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- D. Boston Aye

C. Approve Letters of Intent for Potential Withdrawal from CharterSafe

- J. Webber made a motion to approve the Letters of Intent for Potential Withdrawal from CharterSafe.
- J. Morgan seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- J. Morgan Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- J. Webber Aye

D. Approve Recommendation for Pay Rate Increase for All Staff Effective July 1, 2022

- Dr. Hawn clarified that the increase would be for all staff except for the Cabinet employees Dr. Wunder, Dr. Hawn, Mr. Bravo, and Mr. Amato.
- D. Brann made a motion to approve the Recommendation for Pay Rate Increase for All Staff (Except Cabinet Members) Effective July 1, 2022.
- R. Santiago seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- D. Boston Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- J. Morgan Aye

E. Approve A-G Completion Improvement Grant Plan for Da Vinci Communications

- J. Webber made a motion to approve the A-G Completion Improvement Grant Plan for Da Vinci Communications.
- J. Morgan seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- D. Brann Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- J. Morgan Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- D. Boston Aye

F.

Approve A-G Completion Improvement Grant Plan for Da Vinci Design

- J. Webber made a motion to approve the A-G Completion Improvement Grant Plan for Da Vinci Design.
- J. Morgan seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- D. Boston Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- J. Morgan Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye

G. Approve A-G Completion Improvement Grant Plan for Da Vinci Science

- J. Webber made a motion to approve the A-G Completion Improvement Grant Plan for Da Vinci Science.
- J. Morgan seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- B. Meath Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- J. Morgan Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- H. Approve A-G Completion Improvement Grant Plan for Da Vinci Connect
 - J. Webber made a motion to approve the A-G Completion Improvement Grant Plan for Da Vinci Connect.
 - J. Morgan seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- D. Brann Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- J. Morgan Aye

I. Approve and Adopt Da Vinci Schools Math Placement Policy

Ms. Morgan inquired about the necessity for this policy. Dr. Hawn shared that in an internal review of Da Vinci policies, this policy is required. The leadership team reviewed the policy. All Da Vinci schools will follow the policy.

- J. Morgan made a motion to approve and adopt the Da Vinci Schools Math Placement Policy.
- D. Brann seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- D. Boston Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- J. Morgan Aye
- D. Brann Aye

J. Approve and Adopt Resolution Approving the Addition of Juneteenth National Independence Day as School Holiday

- J. Webber made a motion to approve and adopt the Resolution Approving the Addition of Juneteenth National Independence Day as a School Holiday.
- J. Morgan seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- D. Brann Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- J. Morgan Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- J. Webber Aye

V. Closed Session

A. Conference with Legal Counsel

Closed session entered at 7:35 p.m.

VI. Closing Items

A. Reconvene for Public Session & Closed Session Reporting

Public session resumed at 8:39 p.m.

Ms. Morgan stated that no action was taken in Closed Session.

B. Adjourn Meeting

- R. Santiago made a motion to adjourn.
- J. Webber seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- J. Morgan Aye
- D. Brann Absent
- B. Meath Absent
- D. Boston Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- J. Webber Aye

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:40 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

A. Wohlwerth

Next Regular Da Vinci Schools Board meeting: April 27, 2022.